
AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, August 01, 2022 
6:30 PM 
 
 

I. Appointments – Mayor Bob Nation 
 

A.  TIF Commission  

• Douglas Beach 

• Bruce Geiger 

• Christopher Natsch 
 

 
II. Council Committee Reports 

 

A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Dan Hurt, Ward III 
 

1. Proposed Bill No. 3398 - P.Z. 07-2021 15201 Conway Road (Chabad 
at Chesterfield) – An ordinance amending the Unified Development 
Code of the City of Chesterfield by changing the boundaries of the “R4” 

Residence District to “R-6” Residence District for a 1.01-acre tract of 
land located on the north side of Conway Road [P.Z. 07-2021 15201 
Conway Road, 18S330742]. (Second Reading) Planning Commission 

recommends denial. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends denial. Petitioner requests to hold for final until next 

Council meeting. 
 

2. Next Meeting – Thursday, August 04, 2022 (5:30pm) CANCELLED 

 
B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Barbara 

McGuinness, Ward I 
 
1. Next Meeting – Monday, August 08, 2022 (4:00pm) 

 
 

C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Gary Budoor, 

Ward IV 
 

1. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 
 
 

D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Aaron Wahl, Ward II 
 

1. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
III. Report from the City Administrator & Other Items Requiring Action by 

City Council – Mike Geisel 

 
A. Bid Recommendation - Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing and 

Sealing Projects – Recommendation to accept the low bid submitted 

by Leritz Contracting and to authorize the City Administrator to enter 
into an Agreement with Leritz Contracting for the Asphalt Parking Lot 

Resurfacing Project; and to accept the low bid submitted by Parking 
Lot Maintenance and to authorize the City Administrator to enter into 
an Agreement with Parking Lot Maintenance for the Seal Coat 

Parking Lots and Trails Project in a total amount not to exceed 
$803,000 for both projects.  The projects will be funded via the 

$477,000 allocated in Account 120-079-5470 and $326,000 in 
underruns from other projects within the Capital Projects Fund.  No 
supplemental allocation is necessary. (Roll Call Vote) Department 

of Public Works recommends approval. 
    

B. Municipal League of Metro St. Louis Annual Dues 

 
C. Liquor License Previously Approved – Name Change Only – The 

Western Outlet (Butler’s Pantry) located at 17057 N Outer 40 Rd has 
changed their business name to The Reverie. The original request 
was approved by both the Police and Planning Department and finally 

by City Council on November 18th, 2019. Ownership remains the 
same. City Administrator recommends approval. 

 

 
IV. Other Legislation 

 
A. Proposed Bill No. 3399 – Re-adoption of Procedure for Disclosure 

of Conflicts – An ordinance re-adopting the procedure established in 

Ordinance No. 605 of the City of Chesterfield as the procedure of the 
disclosure of conflicts for certain municipal officials. (First Reading)  

 
B. Proposed Bill No. 3400 - Record Plat - Wildhorse Village, Lot 6 – 

An ordinance providing for the approval of a Record Plat and Escrow 

Agreements for Lot 6 of Wildhorse Village, a 11.6-acre tract of land 
zoned PC&R Planned Commercial and Residence District located 
both north and east of Burkhardt Place. (First & Second Readings) 

Planning Commission recommends approval. 
 

 
V. Unfinished Business 
 



 
VI. New Business 

 
 

VII. Adjournment 
NOTE:  City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 

  

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the purpose 

of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following:  legal actions, causes of 
action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives and its 
attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 
1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups (RSMo 
610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf of a 
public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups (RSMo 
610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994.  
 
PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND AT (636) 
537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



 

AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Chesterfield City Hall 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West 

Monday, August 01, 2022 
7:00 PM 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

IV. ROLL CALL – City Clerk Vickie McGownd 
 

 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2022 
 

B. Special City Council Meeting Minutes – July 25, 2022 
 
 

VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 

A. Thursday, August 04, 2022 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 
CANCELLED 

 
B. Monday, August 08, 2022 – Finance and Administration (4:00pm) 

 

C. Monday, August 15, 2022 – City Council Meeting (7:00pm) 
 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS – Mayor Bob Nation 

 
 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS – Mayor Bob Nation 
 

A. TIF Commission  

• Douglas Beach 

• Bruce Geiger 

• Christopher Natsch 



 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
A. Planning and Public Works Committee – Chairperson Dan Hurt, Ward III 

 
1. Proposed Bill No. 3398 - P.Z. 07-2021 15201 Conway Road 

(Chabad at Chesterfield) – An ordinance amending the Unified 

Development Code of the City of Chesterfield by changing the 
boundaries of the “R4” Residence District to “R-6” Residence District 

for a 1.01-acre tract of land located on the north side of Conway Road 
[P.Z. 07-2021 15201 Conway Road, 18S330742]. (Second Reading) 
Planning Commission recommends denial. Planning & Public 

Works Committee recommends denial. Petitioner requests to 
hold for final until next Council meeting. 

 
2. Next Meeting – August 04, 2022 (5:30pm) CANCELLED  

 

 
B. Finance and Administration Committee – Chairperson Barbara 

McGuinness, Ward I 

 
1. Next Meeting- Monday, August 08, 2022 (4:00pm) 

 
 

C. Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee – Chairperson Gary Budoor, 

Ward IV 
 

1. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 
 

 

D. Public Health and Safety Committee – Chairperson Aaron Wahl, Ward II 
 

1. Next Meeting – Not yet scheduled 

 
 

X. REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR – Mike Geisel 
 

A. Bid Recommendation - Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing and Sealing 
Projects – Recommendation to accept the low bid submitted by Leritz 

Contracting and to authorize the City Administrator to enter into an 
Agreement with Leritz Contracting for the Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing 
Project; and to accept the low bid submitted by Parking Lot Maintenance 

and to authorize the City Administrator to enter into an Agreement with 
Parking Lot Maintenance for the Seal Coat Parking Lots and Trails Project 

in a total amount not to exceed $803,000 for both projects.  The projects 
will be funded via the $477,000 allocated in Account 120-079-5470 and 
$326,000 in underruns from other projects within the Capital Projects 

Fund.  No supplemental allocation is necessary. (Roll Call Vote) 
Department of Public Works recommends approval.    



 

 
B. Municipal League of Metro St. Louis Annual Dues 

 
C. Liquor License Previously Approved – Name Change Only – The Western 

Outlet (Butler’s Pantry) located at 17057 N Outer 40 Rd has changed their 
business name to The Reverie. The original request was approved by both 
the Police and Planning Department and finally by City Council on 

November 18th, 2019. Ownership remains the same. City Administrator 
recommends approval. 

 

 

XI. OTHER LEGISLATION 
 

A. Proposed Bill No. 3399 – Re-adoption of Procedure for Disclosure of 
Conflicts – An ordinance re-adopting the procedure established in 
Ordinance No. 605 of the City of Chesterfield as the procedure of the 

disclosure of conflicts for certain municipal officials. (First Reading)  
 

B. Proposed Bill No. 3400 - Record Plat - Wildhorse Village, Lot 6 – An 

ordinance providing for the approval of a Record Plat and Escrow 
Agreements for Lot 6 of Wildhorse Village, a 11.6-acre tract of land zoned 

PC&R Planned Commercial and Residence District located both north and 
east of Burkhardt Place. (First & Second Readings) Planning 
Commission recommends approval. 

 
 

XII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 

XIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 

XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for 
discussion at that time. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the 
purpose of dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, 
causes of action, litigation or privileged communications between the City’s representatives 
and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 
610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or promoting employees with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(3)1994; Preparation, including any discussions or work product, on behalf 
of a public governmental body or its representatives for negotiations with employee groups 
(RSMo 610.021(9) 1994; and/or bidding specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994. 
 



 

PERSONS REQUIRING AN ACCOMMODATION TO ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN 
THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING SHOULD CONTACT CITY CLERK VICKIE MCGOWND 

AT (636)537-6716, AT LEAST TWO (2) WORKDAYS PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 



AGENDA REVIEW – MONDAY, AUGUST 01, 2022 – 6:30 PM 
 
An AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled to start at 6:30 PM, on Monday, 
August 01, 2022. 

 
 
Please let me know, ASAP, if you will be unable to attend this meeting. 

 
 

 
 
  



 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

JULY 18, 2022 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 

 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 

of silent prayer.  

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT    ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation        Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

[Councilmember Mastorakos participated via teleconference.] 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The minutes of the June 20, 2022 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve 

the June 20, 2022 City Council minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 



 2 

 

The minutes of the June 20, 2022 Executive Session were submitted for approval. 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, to 

approve the June 20, 2022 Executive Session minutes.  A voice vote was taken with a 

unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council is scheduled for Monday, 

August 1, at 7 p.m. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

 

Ms. Lauren Strutman, 16120 Walnut Hill Farm Drive, spoke in opposition to residential 

re-occupancy permits. 

 

APPOINTMENTS 

 

There were no appointments. 

 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ASSOCIATED LEGISLATION 

 

Planning/Public Works Committee 

 

Bill No. 3396 Pertains to the acceptance of Wilbur Court and a portion of 

Patchwork Fields in Fienup Farms as public streets in the City of 

Chesterfield  Second Reading – Planning & Public Works 

Committee recommends approval 

 

Councilmember Dan Hurt, Chairperson of the Planning/Public Works Committee, made a 

motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, for the second reading of Bill No. 3396.  A 

voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared 

passed.  Bill No. 3396 was read for the second time.  A roll call vote was taken for the 

passage and approval of Bill No. 3396 with the following results:  Ayes – Hurt, Budoor, 

Hansen, Moore, Monachella, McGuinness and Wahl.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor 

Nation declared Bill No. 3396 approved, passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 

3198. 

 

Bill No. 3398 Amends the Unified Development Code of the City of Chesterfield 

by changing the boundaries of the “R4” Residence District to “R-6” 

Residence District for a 1.01-acre tract of land located on the north 

side of Conway Road [P.Z. 07-2021 15201 Conway Road, 

18S330742]  (First Reading)  Planning Commission recommends 

denial. Planning & Public Works Committee recommends denial 

 



 3 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, for the first 

reading of Bill No. 3398.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 

and the motion was declared passed.  Bill No. 3398 was read for the first time. 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, to approve 

the Site Development Section Plan, Landscape Plan, Lighting Plan, Architectural 

Elevations and Architects Statement of Design for Wildhorse Village Lot 2A-2.  A voice 

vote was taken with an affirmative result (Councilmember McGuinness voted “No”) and 

the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve a 

proposed resolution authorizing adoption of the City of Chesterfield ADA Transition 

Plan.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was 

declared passed.  The successful resolution became Chesterfield Resolution No. 478. 

 

Councilmember Hurt announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled for 

Thursday, July 21, at 5:30 p.m., but is likely to be canceled due to lack of agenda items. 

 

Finance and Administration Committee 

 

Councilmember Michael Moore, Vice-Chairperson of the Finance and Administration 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Hansen, to approve the 

proposed policy for video streaming of City Council meetings, as recommended by the 

Finance and Administration Committee.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous 

affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Monachella, to 

approve revised F&A Policy No. 6 – Neighborhood Improvement District Policy (NID), 

as recommended by the Finance and Administration Committee.  A voice vote was taken 

with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve 

revised F&A Policy No. 7 – Community Improvement District Policy (CID), as 

recommended by the Finance and Administration Committee.  A voice vote was taken 

with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness, Chairperson of the Finance and Administration 

Committee, made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve a twelve 

month renewal of the Professional Services Contract with Gamble & Schlemeier.  A roll 

call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Monachella, Budoor, Hansen, 

Wahl, McGuinness, Hurt and Moore.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared 

the motion passed. 

 

Councilmember McGuinness made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor,  to 

approve the 2023 City Council Meeting Schedule, as recommended by the Finance and 



 4 

Administration Committee.  A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 

and the motion was declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Budoor, to approve 

proposed employee benefit changes, including authorization to amend the FOP 

agreement if accepted by the FOP, as recommended by the Executive Management Team 

and the Finance and Administration Committee.  A roll call vote was taken with the 

following results:  Ayes – Monachella, Wahl, Moore, Budoor, Hansen, Hurt and 

McGuinness.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to return the 

issue of Residential Re-occupancy Permit Program back to the Finance and 

Administration Committee for further review and consideration.  A voice vote was taken 

with an affirmative result (Councilmember Hansen voted “No”) and the motion was 

declared passed. 

 

Councilmember Moore announced that the next meeting of this Committee is scheduled 

for Monday, August 8, at 4:00 p.m. 

 

Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee 

 

Councilmember Gary Budoor, Chairperson of the Parks, Recreation & Arts Committee, 

indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

Public Health & Safety Committee 

 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl, Chairperson of the Public Health & Safety Committee, 

indicated that there were no action items scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 

City Administrator Mike Geisel reported that Staff is recommending award of a contract 

for replacement of overhead doors at the Public Works Facility.  Based upon review of 

information provided by Director of Public Works/City Engineer Jim Eckrich, Mr. Geisel 

joined with him in recommending authorization for the City Administrator to enter into a 

contract with Zumwalt Corporation for the replacement of two overhead doors at the 

Public Works Facility in an amount not to exceed $29,140, as recommended by the 

Public Works Department.  Councilmember Moore made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember Wahl, to approve this recommendation.  A roll call vote was taken with 

the following results:  Ayes – McGuinness, Budoor, Hurt, Moore, Wahl, Hansen and 

Monachella.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

City Administrator Geisel reported that Staff is recommending award of a contract for 

removal of the solar thermal system at City Hall.  Based upon review of information 

provided by Director of Public Works/City Engineer Jim Eckrich, Mr. Geisel joined with 

him in recommending authorization for the City Administrator to enter into a contract 



 5 

with Prrotect Roofing for removal of the solar thermal system at City Hall, in an amount 

not to exceed $59,140, as recommended by the Public works Department.  

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Moore, to approve 

this recommendation.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – 

Wahl, Hurt, Hansen, Budoor, McGuinness, Moore and Monachella.  Nays – None.  

Whereupon Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel reported that Staff is recommending award of a contract for elevator upgrades 

at City Hall.  Based upon review of information provided by Director of Public 

Works/City Engineer Jim Eckrich, Mr. Geisel joined with him in recommending 

authorization for the City Administrator to enter into a contract with Century Elevator 

Service for the upgrade and modernization of the elevators at City Hall, in an amount not 

to exceed $175,000, as recommended by the Public Works Department.  Councilmember 

Moore made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve this 

recommendation.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – 

McGuinness, Monachella, Hurt, Moore, Wahl, Hansen and Budoor.  Nays – None.  

Whereupon Mayor Nation declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel requested a motion to approve re-appropriation of 2021 funding for network 

communication equipment.  Councilmember Budoor made a motion, seconded by 

Councilmember Moore, to authorize re-appropriation of $10,000 previously included in 

the 2021 budget for network communication upgrades, which were delayed due to 

technology advancement, as recommended by the Information Technology Department.  

A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Moore, Hurt, Wahl, 

McGuinness, Budoor, Monachella and Hansen.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation 

declared the motion passed. 

 

Mr. Geisel requested a motion to authorize a budget transfer for purchase of a 

fingerprinting machine for the Police Department.  Councilmember Moore made a 

motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to authorize a $13,231 budget transfer from 

the Public Safety – Restricted Fund Reserves for the purpose of replacing the Police 

Department’s fingerprinting machine, as recommended by the Police Department.  A roll 

call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – Hansen, Moore, McGuinness, 

Hurt, Wahl, Monachella and Budoor.  Nays – None.  Whereupon Mayor Nation declared 

the motion passed. 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

There was no “Other Legislation” scheduled for this meeting. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

There was no unfinished business scheduled on the agenda for this meeting. 

 



 6 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

There was no new business. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:59 

p.m. 

 

 

 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 

 



 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

 

 

 SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  

OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

 AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

 

JULY 25, 2022 

 
 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5 p.m. 

 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

 

PRESENT ABSENT 

 

Mayor Bob Nation  

Councilmember Mary Monachella 

Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 

Councilmember Aaron Wahl 

Councilmember Mary Ann Mastorakos 

Councilmember Dan Hurt 

Councilmember Michael Moore 

Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

Councilmember Gary Budoor 

 

OTHER LEGISLATION 

 

Director of Planning Justin Wyse reminded City Council that on June 29, 2022, staff was 

directed to explore options for economic development tools in the southwest quadrant of 

Chesterfield.  He then gave a brief presentation describing the process of establishing said 

economic development tools (presentation attached). 

 

The City issued Requests for Qualifications (RFQs) and entered into a contract with PGAV 

Planners, LLC (PGAV) to begin a formal review process of conditions and opportunities 

within the redevelopment area.  After review, PGAV has determined the study area meets the 

legal requirements for a blighted area and has recommended the City consider a Tax Increment 



 2 

Financing (TIF) District to meet Council’s direction.  Based on this endorsement, staff 

recommends approval of a resolution to form a TIF Commission to create a redevelopment 

plan, hold a public hearing, and ultimately present a recommendation to City Council for 

adoption by ordinance.  Mr. Wyse stated that creation of a TIF Commission does not obligate 

the City, it simply gives approval to start the process. 

 

Mr. Wyse also expressed staff’s intent to continue investigation of a Special Business District 

(SBD) to address ongoing maintenance within the southwest quadrant.  He explained that once 

a potential TIF goes through the TIF Commission and moves into redevelopment agreements 

with the developer, the TIF and SBD could be addressed concurrently. 

 

Mr. Wyse stated that the proposed TIF District is not a tax abatement; rather, it is an allocation 

of where tax dollars go and where they are spent.  No developer subsidies would be provided.  

It would only be used for public improvements.  The developer or parcel owner would still pay 

their full tax rate and there would be no additional consumer taxes. 

 

Mr. Wyse explained that when a TIF District is created the current assessed value is 

established and that serves as the base level for taxing entities though the life of the TIF.  All 

taxing jurisdictions would continue to receive tax revenues from the base year assessment 

levels.  As development occurs, property values and revenues from property taxes increase; 

thereby creating an increment.  That increment would be sent to the Special Allocation Fund, 

which would be used to pay for identified approved projects in a TIF District. 

 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Wahl, to approve a 

proposed resolution establishing the Tax Increment Financing Commission of the City of 

Chesterfield, Missouri; providing for a method of appointment of members of said 

commission; and authorizing certain actions in connection therewith.  Discussion ensued and 

questions were addressed.  A roll call vote was taken with the following results:  Ayes – 

Monachella, Moore, Hansen, Hurt, McGuinness, Budoor, Mastorakos and Wahl.  Nays – 

None.  Mayor Nation declared the motion passed.  The successful resolution became 

Chesterfield Resolution No. 479. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 5:40 p.m. 

 

 

          

Mayor Bob Nation 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________  

Vickie McGownd, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL:  __________________ 



Southwest Quadrant
Redevelopment Area



Overview
• At the June 29th meeting, a motion was approved to, “direct Staff to explore options for economic development tools in 

the southwest quadrant of Chesterfield, advise and engage landowners, and begin discussions regarding reimbursement 
agreement opportunities.” 

• PGAV hired to begin the formal review process of the conditions and opportunities within the redevelopment area.

• After review, PGAV has recommended the City consider a TIF District to meet Council’s direction.

1. Protect and sustain the levels of service provided to the larger Chesterfield Community. With the addition of $2.5 billion of development, municipal
resources will certainly be strained and services diminished if not addressed.

2. The proposed development on roads, law enforcement, parks, and other infrastructure will reach far beyond the proximity of the development and we
must consider the impacts and capacity of those systems.

3. Identify strategies that will fund the public infrastructure needs and preserve levels of service without burdening the existing residents and businesses.

4. Do not increase consumer taxes or property tax rates on the broader community.

5. No intent to create development incentives or subsidies. Any district financing is to be directed to public infrastructure needs.

• Recommendation that the City consider a Special Business District to address ongoing maintenance of public 
infrastructure within redevelopment area



Study Area



Qualifications Analysis
• "Blighted area", an area which, by reason of the predominance of insanitary or unsafe conditions,

deterioration of site improvements, or the existence of conditions which endanger life or property by fire
and other causes, or any combination of such factors, retards the provision of housing accommodations
or constitutes an economic or social liability or a menace to the public health, safety, or welfare in its
present condition and use; (R.S. MO 99.805(1))

• PGAV performed site visits in May and July 2022 and examined the exterior of all properties within the
Area and the interior of Chesterfield Mall.

• PGAV documented existing conditions within the Area with over 170 photographs

After the investigation, PGAV concluded that the Area as a whole qualifies for the use of TIF 
under R.S. MO 99.805(1) and is, therefore, a blighted area. 



What is a TIF (Tax Increment Financing) 
District
• Missouri TIF law authorizes cities and counties to adopt a redevelopment plan that provides for the 

redevelopment of a designated area, and to use TIF to fund a portion of the project costs.  

• The total cumulative assessed value of real property in the proposed redevelopment area is determined prior to 
development.  All of the taxing districts will continue to receive taxes based on that base pre-developed 
assessment throughout the life of the TIF. 

• As the land in the TIF is improved and developed, the total assessed valuation increases. 

• The OWNER\DEVELOPER of property within the TIF continues to pay the entire property tax bill, based on the 
total increased valuation.  

• As the property is improved, the assessed value of property in the redevelopment area increases above the 
original base level.  When property taxes are calculated based on the increased valuation on properties within 
the TIF, a “tax increment” is produced. 



What is a TIF District



What is a TIF District (cont.)
• The net effect of tax increment financing is to permit the use of the increased portion of property taxes, which 

are paid by developer\owner and half of the increased economic activity taxes, to fund specifically approved 
project related improvements.

• Increased tax payments are not abated but are captured and diverted to the special allocation fund, to fund 
costs of the project.  

• There are no new\additional consumer taxes associated with the TIF.

• Since the tax increment isn’t realized immediately, developers\owners typically privately finance initial approved 
project costs, with an expectation that they will subsequently be reimbursed by future TIF revenues.  The 
owner\developer assumes all associated risk.

• The terms for how a development progresses and the relationship between the individual developers and the 
City are subject to a separate Development Agreement.



Process
Before a municipality may CONSIDER implementing tax increment financing: 

• City creates a TIF Commission by resolution.  

• Creation of a TIF Commission does not create a TIF District and does not obligate the City to ultimately approve 
a TIF.  It simply initiates the legal, public process for consideration.

In St. Louis County, the TIF Commission consists of 12 members.  

• Six from St. Louis County

• Three from City of Chesterfield

• Two from school district(s)

• One from other taxing district

You Are Here!



Role of the TIF Commission
Develop a redevelopment plan. The redevelopment plan consists of:  

• Estimated redevelopment project costs

• The anticipated sources of funds to pay the costs

• Evidence of commitment to finance the project costs 

• The anticipated type and term of the sources of funds to pay costs

• The anticipated type and term of the obligations to be issued 

• The most recent equalized assessed valuation of the property within the redevelopment area that is to be subjected to 
payments in lieu of taxes and economic activity taxes

• An estimate of the equalized assessed valuation after redevelopment 

• The general use of the land in the redevelopment area



Role of the TIF Commission
PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

• Before adopting tax increment financing, the TIF Commission must hold a public hearing on the redevelopment 
plan and redevelopment project and the proposed redevelopment area.  

• Notice of the hearing must be published and must be mailed to affected taxing districts and property owners.  

• The TIF commission is required to vote on any proposed redevelopment plan, redevelopment project, or 
designation of a redevelopment area within 30 days of the public hearing and to make recommendations to the 
governing body of a municipality.   

ADOPTION OF REDEVELOPMENT PLAN BY CITY

• The redevelopment plan only becomes effective upon adoption of an ordinance by the City that approves the 
redevelopment plan and the redevelopment project and designates the redevelopment area. 



Reporting / Hearing Requirements
• The City must submit an annual report to the Missouri Department of Revenue, concerning the status of each 

redevelopment plan and project no later than November 15th of each year.   

• The City must also publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the county, a statement showing the 
payments in lieu of taxes received and expended in that year, the status of the redevelopment plan and 
projects, the amount of outstanding bonded indebtedness and any additional information the City deems 
necessary.   

• Every five years, the City must hold a public hearing to determine if the redevelopment project is making 
satisfactory progress under the proposed time schedule contained in the redevelopment plan.  

• In the case of the potential Chesterfield Regional TIF, the City of Chesterfield would be the custodian of the 
Special Allocation Fund, exactly as we were for the Chesterfield Valley TIF.



Recommendation
• The study area meets the legal requirements for a blighted area – PGAV.

• Recommend creating a TIF Commission to create a Redevelopment Plan, hold a Public Hearing, and provide a 
recommendation to the City Council.

• Continue investigating Special Business District (SBD) with intent for consideration of Development Agreements 
to be done in conjunction with a potential SBD to ensure maintenance costs do not impair the City’s obligations 
to maintain existing infrastructure



Next Steps (if approved)
• Form TIF Commission and receive recommendation from the TIF Commission on a Redevelopment Plan.

‐ TIF Commission conducts Public Hearing

‐ Formal Recommendation from TIF Commission to City Council 

• Redevelopment Plan must be approved by Ordinance by City Council

• Address ongoing operational costs (Special Business District)

• Development Agreements submitted to and approved by City Council for each Redevelopment Planning Area.

You Are Here!



UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS   
 
A. Thursday, August 04, 2022 – Planning & Public Works (5:30pm) 

This meeting has been cancelled. 
 
B. Monday, August 08, 2022 – Finance and Administration (4:00pm) 

 
C. Monday, August 15, 2022 – City Council Meeting (7:00pm) 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS  
 

This section provides time for the public to speak and express their views during 
public comment.  Each speaker is limited to not more than four minutes, after 
which, the City Administrator will indicate that their time has expired.  It is 

important to remember that this section of the agenda is not intended or appropriate 
for debate or question and answer period.  This is the public’s opportunity to share 

their comments in a public forum. 
 

 
APPOINTMENTS 
 

TIF Commission Appointees 

• Douglas Beach 

• Bruce Geiger 

• Christopher Natsch 
 

At the special City Council meeting on 7/25/2022, the City Council approved 

resolution #479 authorizing the formation of a TIF Commission.  Pursuant to that 
resolution and in accordance with statutory requirements, Mayor Nation has 
nominated three individuals to serve on the TIF Commission.  Nominations are 

submitted by the Mayor, and the City Council is required to consider such 
nominations and vote to consent.  A simple majority, by voice vote is required for the 

Council to demonstrate their consent. 
 



PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Hurt 

Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Monachella 

 

Proposed Bill No. 3398 - P.Z. 07-2021 15201 Conway Road (Chabad at 
Chesterfield) – An ordinance amending the Unified Development Code of the City of 

Chesterfield by changing the boundaries of the “R4” Residence District to “R-6” 
Residence District for a 1.01-acre tract of land located on the north side of Conway 

Road [P.Z. 07-2021 15201 Conway Road, 18S330742]. (Second Reading) Planning 
Commission recommends denial. Planning & Public Works Committee 
recommends denial. Petitioner requests to hold for final until next Council 

meeting. 

 

 

NEXT MEETING 

 
The Planning and Public Works Committee which was scheduled for Thursday, 

August 4th, 2022, at 5:30 pm, has been cancelled. 
 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Director 

of Planning - Justin Wyse, Director of Public Works – Jim Eckrich, or me prior to 
Tuesday’s meeting.   



BILL NO.                       ORDINANCE NO.______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF THE “R4” 

RESIDENCE DISTRICT TO “R-6” RESIDENCE DISTRICT FOR A 1.01 ACRE 

TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF CONWAY ROAD [P.Z. 

07-2021 15201 CONWAY ROAD, 18S330742]. 

 

 WHEREAS, the petitioner, Chabad at Chesterfield, has requested a change 

in zoning from the “R4” Residence District to “R-6” Residence District for a 

1.01acre tract of land located on the north side of Conway Road; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on 

April 11, 2022; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission’s recommendation to approve said 

request failed by a vote of 0-7; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning and Public 

Works Committee on June 23, 2022 in accordance with the applicant’s appeal 

of the Planning Commission’s decision; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered 

said request, recommended to deny a change of zoning to the “R-6” Residential 

District by a vote of 4-0; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to 

approve the change of zoning request. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 Section 1. City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code and the Official 

Zoning District Map, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by establishing 

an “R-6” Residence District designation for a 1.01acre tract of land located on 

the north side of Conway Road and as described as follows: 

 

A tract of land being part of August Hill Estate and in U.S. Survey 1811, 

Township 45 North, Range 4 East and being more particularly described as 

follows: Beginning at the intersection of the West line of property described in 

Mary Ann Madden
Typewriter

Mary Ann Madden
Typewriter

Mary Ann Madden
Typewriter
3398



deed to Chabad of Chesterfield, Inc. and the North line of Conway Road, 40 feet 

wide, thence leaving said North line North 4 degrees 21 minutes East a distance 

of 225.00 feet to a point, thence South 85 degrees 39 minutes East, a distance 

of 205.00 feet to a point; thence South 3 degrees 05 minutes 30 seconds West a 

distance of 224.07 feet to a point in the North line of Conway Road, 40 feet wide, 

thence South 85 degrees 50 minutes West along the North line of Conway Road, 

40 feet wide, a distance of 6.60 feet to an angle point; thence North 85 degrees 

39 minutes West along the North line of Conway Road, 40 feet wide, a distance 

of 203.40 feet to the point of beginning. 

Consulting Engineers 

 Section 2. The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield 

Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and 

regulations. 

 

 Section 3. The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by Chabad at 

Chesterfield in P.Z. 07-2021, requesting the rezoning embodied in this 

ordinance, and after public hearings held by the Planning Commission on the 

11th day of April 2022 and by the Planning & Public Works Committee on the 

23rd day of June 2022, does hereby adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power 

granted to the City of Chesterfield under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of 

the State of Missouri authorizing the City Council to exercise legislative power 

pertaining to planning and zoning.

 

 Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from 

the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the City of 

Chesterfield Unified Development Code.  

 

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and approval.  

 

 Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2022 

   

_____________________________    _____________________________ 

    PRESIDING OFFICER        Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 
 

FIRST READING HELD: __07/18/2022_______ 



PROJECT NOTES: PHASE 3 
 

AREA OF SITE: 1.01 ACRES 43,43,996 SF 
 

PARCEL ID: 18S330742 
 

SITE ADDRESS: 15201 CONWAY ROAD CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 63017 
 

OWNER OF RECORD: CHABAD OF CHESTERFIELD INC. 
137 BRIGHBURST DRIVE 
CHESTERFIELD, MO 63005 
 

 

PREPARED FOR:  

CHABAD OF 

CHESTERFIELD INC. 

15201 CONWAY RD. 
CHESTERFIELD, MO 63017 
RABBIAVI@GMAIL.COM  

 

PREPARED BY: 

 

10849 INDIAN HEAD INDL. 
BLVD. 
ST. LOUIS, MO 63132 
314.426.6212 MAIN 
314.890.1250 FAX 

 

EXISTING ZONING: R-4 “RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT” 

PROPOSED ZONING: R-6 “RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT” 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART IF AUGUST HILL ESTATE 
AND IN U.S. SURVEY 1911, TOWNSHIP 45 NORTH, RANGE 4 
EAST CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, 
MISSOURI 

 

GAS: 
WATER: 
SEWER: 
ELECTRIC: 
TELEPHONE: 
SCHOOL DISTRICT: 
FIRE DISTRICT: 

SPIRE 
MISSOURI AMERICAN WATER COMPANY (314) 469-6050 
METROPOLITIAN ST. LOUIS SEWER DISTRICT 
AMEREN 
AT&T 
PARKWAY SCHOOL DISTRICT (314) 415-8100 
MONARCH FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT (314) 514-0900 

 

 

A tract of land being part of August Hill Estate and in U.S. Survey 1911, Township 45 North, Range 4 

East and being more particularly described as follows: Beginning at the intersection of the West line 

of property described in deed to Chabad of Chesterfield, Inc. and the North line of Conway Road, 

40 feet wide, thence leaving said North line North 4 degrees 21 minutes East a distance of 225.00 

feet to a point, thence South 85 degrees 39 minutes East, a distance of 205.00 feet to a point; 

thence South 3 degrees 05 minutes 30 seconds West a distance of 224.07 feet to a point in the 

North line of Conway Road, 40 feet wide, thence South 85 degrees 50 minutes West along the 

North line of Conway Road, 40 feet wide, a distance of 6.60 feet to an angle point; thence North 85 

degrees 39 minutes West along the North line of Conway Road, 40 feet wide, a distance of 

203.40 feet to the point of beginning. 



DescriptionDate No.

Revisions:

Sheet
Title:

Date:
Job #:

Sheet
No:

Consultants:

Drawn:
Checked:

C
ha

ba
d 

of
 C

he
st

er
fie

ld

15
20

1 
C

on
w

ay
 R

oa
d

dad
bad

TSD

TSD-1
1/xx/2022
211.001

eL
on

g
an

ds
ca

pe
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e,
 L

L
C

76
20

 W
es

t B
ru

no
 A

ve
S

t. 
L

ou
is

, M
O

.  
63

11
7

(3
14

) 
34

6-
48

56
de

lo
ng

.la
@

gm
ai

l.c
om

Douglas A. DeLong, Landscape Architect LA-81

M
is

so
ur

i S
ta

te
 C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ty
:  

#2
01

30
00

14
5

D
eL

on
g,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
e,

 L
L

C

1

LEGEND

Location

Referance Number

Tree Stand Delineation Plan Prepared
under direction of Colleen Baum of Droege Tree Care, Inc
Certified Arborist MW-4777A

Tree Stand Delineation Narrative
January 17, 2022

The site has no woodlands.  Tree Canopy is made up of individual landscape trees.

1.  22" dbh Black Walnut Average condition 1,100 sf canopy
2.  18" dbh Black Walnut Average condition 900 sf canopy
3.  20" dbh Black Walnut Average condition 1,000 sf canopy
4.  14" dbh Sycamore  Average condition 700 sf canopy
5.  25" dbh Black Walnut Poor condition 1,250 sf canopy
6.  27" dbh Black Walnut Average condition 1,350 sf canopy

RATING: Fair Quality
Average Quality
Excellent Quality

In a site visit on above date it was determined that other than the trees listed above all
others were dead having been choked out by grapevines. Bush Honeysuckle is the
predominate groundcover.   No state champion or rare trees were found on the site.
No existing trees met two or more of the requirements to be considered Monarch trees.
There are no improvements on this site.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
15201 Conway Rd

AutoCAD SHX Text
Conway Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
Area 1.01 Ac

AutoCAD SHX Text
210'

AutoCAD SHX Text
215'

AutoCAD SHX Text
209'

AutoCAD SHX Text
215'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1"=20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Tree Stand Delineation

Kathy Reiter
Current Date (mm/dd/yyyy)



FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Chair:  Councilmember McGuinness 
Vice-Chair:  Councilmember Moore 

 
There are no Finance and Administration items scheduled for actions at tonight’s 
meeting. 

 
NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee is scheduled for 
Monday, August 08th, 2022, at 4:00 pm.  

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Finance 
Director Jeannette Kelly or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting.   

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



PARKS, RECREATION AND ARTS COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Budoor 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Moore 

 
There are no Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee items scheduled for actions at 
tonight’s meeting. 

 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Parks, Recreation and Arts Committee has not yet been 

scheduled. 
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Parks, 
Recreation and Arts Director Thomas McCarthy or me prior to Tuesday’s meeting. 
 

 



PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 
Chair:  Councilmember Aaron Wahl 
Vice Chair:  Councilmember Merrell Hansen 

 
There are no Public Health and Safety Committee items scheduled for actions at 
tonight’s meeting. 

 
 

NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting of the Public Health and Safety Committee has not yet been 

scheduled. 
 

If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Chief Ray 
Johnson or me prior Tuesday’s meeting.   
 

 



REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR & OTHER ITEMS 
REQUIRING ACTION BY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

Bid Recommendation - Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing and Sealing Projects –  
I join with Director of Public Works\City Engineer Jim Eckrich, in recommending 
acceptance of the low bid submitted by Leritz Contracting and to authorize me as 

City Administrator to enter into an Agreement with Leritz Contracting for the Asphalt 
Parking Lot Resurfacing Project; and to accept the low bid submitted by Parking Lot 

Maintenance and to authorize the City Administrator to enter into an Agreement 
with Parking Lot Maintenance for the Seal Coat Parking Lots and Trails Project in a 
total amount not to exceed $803,000 for both projects.  The projects will be funded 

via the $477,000 allocated in Account 120-079-5470 and $326,000 in underruns 
from other projects within the Capital Projects Fund.  No supplemental allocation is 
necessary. (Roll Call Vote) Department of Public Works recommends approval.    

 
Municipal League of Metro St. Louis Annual Dues  

I have provided the annual dues statement from the St. Louis County Metro 
Municipal league for approval prior to payment.  Funds for this purpose are included 
in the 2022 adopted budget, and while Council approval is not required by policy or 

our procurement procedures, City Council previously requested that they be 
consulted prior to processing for payment.  As such, I am requesting that Council 

review and provide authorization to pay the 2022- 2023 dues, in the amount of 
$6,410.   A roll call vote is required. 
   

Liquor License Previously Approved – Name Change Only – The Western Outlet 
(Butler’s Pantry) located at 17057 N Outer 40 Rd has changed their business name 
to The Reverie. The original liquor license request was approved by both the Police 

and Planning Department and finally by City Council on November 18th, 2019. 
Ownership remains the same. City Administrator recommends approval. 



1 | P a g e  

 

Memorandum 

Department of Public Works 
 

 

TO:   Michael O. Geisel, P.E. 
   City Administrator 

 
FROM:  James A. Eckrich, P.E. 

   Public Works Dir. / City Engineer
  

DATE:  July 22, 2022  
  

RE: Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing and Sealing Projects  
 

 

The Department of Public Works publicly opened bids for the 2022 Asphalt Parking 
Lot Resurfacing Project and the 2022 Seal Coat Parking Lots and Trails Project on 

July 19, 2022, as detailed in the attached memorandum from Assistant City 

Engineer Zachary Wolff.  That memorandum describes the scope of these two 

projects, which includes:  1) an asphalt overlay for the parking lots located at City 
Hall, the Aquatic Center, and at Parks Administration; 2) sealing of the parking lots 

at the Chesterfield Valley Athletic Complex and Meditation Park and the Monarch-

Chesterfield Levee Trail.  As you can see, the low bids for both projects were 
substantially higher than the budget for these projects.  The magnitude of the cost 

increases simply could not be accounted for when the 2022 Budget was created.  For 

example, the unit costs for the sealing project are 220% higher than they were five 
years ago.   

 

It is the goal of the Public Works Department to work within budget and only to 
request supplemental allocations when absolutely necessary.  We have demonstrated 

our commitment to working within budget by deferring a number of purchases and 

capital work, including removing six streets from Selective Slab Replacement Project 

B.  Alternatively, when scope reductions are not possible and funds are not otherwise 
available, we have requested supplemental allocations, with the most pertinent 

example being the Eberwein Park Trail Project.   

 
In this case the aggregate budget for the Parking Lot Resurfacing Project and the 

Sealing Project is $477,000.  The low bids came in at a combined $735,953, resulting 

in a budget overrun of $258,953.  Fortunately, due to project underruns, both 
achieved and anticipated, this overrun can be accommodated within the allocation 

authorized in the Capital Projects Fund.  Specifically, the City Hall Exterior Lighting 

Project was constructed $17,353 under the authorized amount and Selective Slab 
Project A and B will be constructed approximately $100,000 to $120,000 under the 

authorized amount.  Further, it appears that the Schoettler Road project currently 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

under construction will come in approximately $250,000 to $300,000 under the 
authorized amount. This is an aggregate savings of (conservatively) $367,353. 

 

You may question how these project under-runs occur.  When City Council 
authorizes an expenditure that expenditure regularly includes a contingency to 

account for change orders which may be necessary during a project.  Our Project 

Managers and Engineers work hard to avoid change orders, and only authorize 
change orders that are absolutely necessary.  That means that projects are regularly 
constructed under the authorized amount.  In the case of the City Hall Exterior 

Lighting Project and Selective Slab Project A and B we were able to construct those 

projects with minimal change orders.  The underrun on Schoettler Road was 
generated because the base under the pavement was in much better condition than 

anticipated, avoiding an anticipated $300,000 in pavement base repairs.   

 
There are times where unforeseen conditions cause work to occur that exceeds the 

City Council authorized amount.  This rarely occurs, but when it does it necessitates 

that City Council be notified.  This has recently occurred on the Riparian Trail 

Project, which necessitated a large number of changes orders due to additional tree 
removals, drainage improvements, retaining walls, and unsuitable pavement base 

encountered throughout the project.  We currently project that the Riparian Trail 

Project will be constructed $79,202 above the City Council authorized amount of 
$959,000.  The good news is that this project is funded exclusively through a 

Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant and the Chesterfield Valley TDD.  

Accordingly, there will be no impact to the City budget.  Additionally, City Staff will 
attempt to recoup the project over-run through the engineering consultant and the 

TAP grant, potentially reducing the project over-run from $79,202 to $27,721 or 

lower.   
 

After thoroughly reviewing the bids and other expenditures within the Capital 

Projects Fund, I recommend that the Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing Project 

be awarded to Leritz Contracting and the Seal Coat Parking Lots and Trails 
Project be awarded to Parking Lot Maintenance in a combined amount not to 

exceed $803,000 for both projects.  This includes the low bids ($735,953) and a 

modest contingency for both projects.  The projects will be funded via the $477,000 
allocated for these projects in Account 120-079-5470 and $326,000 in underruns 

from other projects within the Capital Projects Fund.  No supplemental allocation is 

necessary.
 

If you have questions or require additional information on this project, please let me 

know.  
 

  

Concurrence: ____________________________________ 

    Jeannette Kelly, Finance Director 
 

 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

Action Recommended 
 

This matter should be forwarded to the City Council for consideration.  Should 

Council concur with Staff’s recommendation, it should authorize the City 
Administrator to enter into Agreements with Leritz Contracting and Parking Lot 

Maintenance in a total amount not to exceed $803,000.              





























 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

DATE:   November 7, 2019 

 

TO:  Mike Geisel 

  City Administrator 

  

FROM:  Andrea Majoros, Business Assistance Coordinator  

 

SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE REQUEST – THE WESTERN OUTLET (BUTLER’S PANTRY) 

   

              

 

THE WESTERN OUTLET (BUTLER’S PANTRY), 17057 N OUTER 40 RD, STES 121-130 (TEMP ADDRESS WHILE 

UNDER CONSTRUCTION) has requested a new liquor license for retail sale of all kinds of 

intoxicating liquor by the drink, to be consumed on premise plus packaged and Sunday sales.   

 

Mr. Richard L. Nix, Jr. is the Managing Officer. 

 

This application was reviewed and approved by both the Police Department and the 

Planning/Development Services Division of the Department of Public Services. 

 

With City Council approval at the Monday, November 18, 2019 City Council meeting, I will 

immediately issue this license. 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

DATE:   July 25, 2022 

 

TO:  Mike Geisel 

  City Administrator 

  

FROM:  Andrea Majoros, Business Assistance Coordinator  

 

SUBJECT: LIQUOR LICENSE PREVIOUSLY APPROVED – NAME CHANGE ONLY 

   

              

 

The Western Outlet (Butler’s Pantry) – 17057 N Outer 40 Rd - has changed their business name 

to The Reverie.   

 

The original liquor license request was approved by both the Police Department, Planning 

Department and finally by City Council on November 18, 2019.  

 

Ownership is the same and Mr. Richard L. Nix, Jr. remains the Managing Officer for the license. 

 

 

 

 



OTHER LEGISLATION 
 
Proposed Bill No. 3399 – Re-adoption of Procedure for Disclosure of Conflicts – 

This bill represents the annual adoption of the City’s official ordinance which sets 
forth our procedures for disclosure of Conflicts.  This is an annual process, for 
Council to acknowledge and re-adopt a formal procedure which was originally 

established by Ordinance No. 605 of the City of Chesterfield as the procedure of the 
disclosure of conflicts for certain municipal officials. (First Reading)  

 
 
Proposed Bill No. 3400 - Record Plat - Wildhorse Village, Lot 6 –  This bill 

represents an ordinance providing for the approval of a Record Plat and Escrow 
Agreements for Lot 6 of Wildhorse Village, a 11.6-acre tract of land zoned PC&R 

Planned Commercial and Residence District located both north and east of 
Burkhardt Place. In accord with City Council policies and procedures, plat approvals 
are read twice in the same evening. (First & Second Readings) Planning 

Commission recommends approval. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
There is no “Unfinished Business” scheduled for action at this meeting. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 





BILL NO.   3399                   ORDINANCE NO.______________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE RE-ADOPTING THE PROCEDURE ESTABLISHED IN ORDINANCE NO. 

605 OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD AS THE PROCEDURE FOR DISCLOSURE OF 

CONFLICTS FOR CERTAIN MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS. 

 

 WHEREAS, Missouri Statute 105.485 authorizes the City of Chesterfield to adopt an 

ordinance which establishes its own method of disclosing potential conflicts of interest; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, without such an ordinance, each official, officer or employee of the City, 

and each candidate for office shall be required to file a financial interest statement with the 

Missouri Ethics Commission, pursuant to subsection 2 of Section 105.485; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council originally adopted its own ordinance establishing a 

method of disclosing potential conflicts of interest with Ordinance No. 605, adopted August 

19, 1991 and has renewed the ordinance at least biennially, and often annually, since 

1991; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it is in the best interest of the public to readopt 

Ordinance No. 605 as the procedure for disclosure of conflicts of interest for the City of 

Chesterfield; 
 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1.  The City of Chesterfield hereby formally re-adopts the procedure set out 

in Ordinance No. 605 as the procedure for disclosure of potential conflicts of interest and 

substantial interests. 
 

 Section 2.  All requirements as set out in Ordinance No. 605 are to remain in full 

force and effect. 
 

 Section 3. The City Clerk is directed to send a certified copy of this Ordinance to the 

Missouri Ethics Commission prior to September 25, 2022. 
 

 Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage 

and approval as provided by law. 

 

 

 Passed and approved this _______ day of ____________________, 2022.  

 

 

              

PRESIDING OFFICER     Bob Nation, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 
      

Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

FIRST READING HELD: _________________ 



Memorandum  
Department of Planning  
 

To:  Michael O. Geisel, City Administrator 
 

From: Justin Wyse, Director of Planning  
 

Date:  August 01, 2022   
 

RE:  Wildhorse Village (Lot 6) Record Plat: A Record Plat for an 11.6 acre 

tract of land zoned PC&R Planned Commercial and Residence District 
located both north and east of Burkhardt Place. 

 

Summary 
Stock and Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc. has submitted a Record Plat for City 
Council review. This request depicts the creation of a 35 lot development within the 

11.6 acre tract of land platted as Lot 6 of Wildhorse Village. The subject site is zoned 
“PC&R” Planned Commercial and Residence District and is governed under the terms 

and conditions of City of Chesterfield Ordinance Number 3161. The Record Plat for the 
entire Wildhorse Village Development was approved by the City of Chesterfield City 
Council on November 15, 2021. 

 
A record plat is the instrument which dedicates lots, common ground, necessary 
easements and road right-of-way for future roads within a development or a portion 

thereof.  Once a plat is recorded, the new lots may be sold to individual owners.  This 
plat would establish 35 new lots for development and Common Ground. On May 10, 

2021 the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission approved the Site Development 
Section Plan for Lot 6 of Wildhorse Village. The proposed Record Plat is in the same lot 
configuration that exists in the recently approved Site Development Section Plan. All 

of the lots are currently undeveloped, but mass grading is underway to facilitate the 
infrastructure (roadways, sanitary sewers, stormwater management, electric) involved 

with the development. 
 
On July 25, 2022 the City of Chesterfield Planning Commission made a motion to 

recommended approval of the Wildhorse Village Lot 6 Record Plat. The motion passed 
by a vote of (8-0).  
 

On the following page is an image depicting the location of the subject site within the 
overall Wildhorse Village development.  

 
Attached to the legislation, please find a copy of the Record Plat and Escrow Agreements.  
 

 
 
 

 



Wildhorse Village (Lot 6)  CC Memo 

(Record Plat)   August 01, 2022 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Figure 1: Location of Subject Site within the overall Wildhorse Village Development 



BILL NO.____________    ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL OF A RECORD PLAT AND 
ESCROW AGREEMENTS FOR LOT 6 OF WILDHORSE VILLAGE, A 11.6 ACRE 

TRACT OF LAND ZONED PC&R PLANNED COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENCE 
DISTRICT LOCATED BOTH NORTH AND EAST OF BURKHARDT PLACE.  
 

 WHEREAS, Stock and Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., has submitted 
for review and approval a Record Plat for Lot 6 of Wildhorse Village located both 
north and east of Burkhardt Place.; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of said Record Plat is to subdivide a 11.6 acre tract 

of land into 35 lots and common ground; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission having reviewed the same request and 

has recommended approval thereof; and, 
 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section 1. The Record Plat and escrow agreements for Lot 6 of Wildhorse 
Village, which is made part hereof and attached hereto as “Exhibit 1” is hereby 
approved; provided, however, that nothing in this ordinance shall be construed 

or interpreted as an acceptance of the public utilities or public easement which 
are dedicated on the Record Plat. The owner is directed to record the plat with 

the St. Louis County Recorder of Deeds Office. 
 
 Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are authorized and directed to evidence 

the approval of said Record Plat by affixing their signatures and the Official Seal 
of the City of Chesterfield as required on said documents.  
 

 Section 3. The Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage and approval. 

 
Passed and approved this ___________________ day of ___________________, 2022. 

 

_____________________________    ___________________________ 
  PRESIDING OFFICER       Bob Nation, MAYOR 

                        
ATTEST: 
 

_________________________________ 
Vickie McGownd, CITY CLERK 

 
FIRST READING HELD: 08/01/2022 







(strike through this party if cash deposited with City),

Wildhorse Village, LP

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

One million, five hundred twenty four thousand, five hundred sixty six and 19/100

1,524,566.19

Bank of Washington

3161



(type of readily 

negotiable instrument acceptable to the CITY)

1,524,566.19

WILDHORSE VILLAGE

One million, five hundred twenty four thousand, five hundred sixty six and 19/100



















SUBDIVISION: Wildhorse Village Lot 6 DEVELOPER:
PLAT: n/a

SUBDIVISION CODE: 701
NO. LOTS: 35

DATE OF PLAT APPROVAL: NAY

DATE OF % ORIGINAL TOTAL TOTAL  % CURRENT %
CATEGORY RELEASE RELEASE BALANCE RELEASED RELEASED BALANCE REMAINING

STREETS $548,760.41 $0.00 0 $548,760.41 100
$0.00

SIDEWALKS $102,285.81 $0.00 0 $102,285.81 100
$0.00

STREET SIGNS $1,623.60 $0.00 0 $1,623.60 100
$0.00

SANITARY SEWER 06/21/22 50 $266,198.13 $133,099.07 50 $133,099.07 50
$0.00

STORM SEWER 06/21/22 50 $253,909.06 $126,954.53 50 $126,954.53 50
$0.00

GRADING 06/21/22 50 $87,637.00 $43,818.50 50 $43,818.50 50
$0.00

DETENTION 06/21/22 50 $16,335.00 $8,167.50 50 $8,167.50 50
$0.00

WATER QUALITY $42,229.00 $0.00 0 $42,229.00 100
$0.00

EROSION CONTROL 06/21/22 50 $15,686.00 $7,843.00 50 $7,843.00 50
$0.00

SILTATION CONTROL 06/21/22 50 $8,811.00 $4,405.50 50 $4,405.50 50
$0.00

COMMON GROUND SEED $21,125.63 $0.00 0 $21,125.63 100
AND ISLAND SODDING $0.00

MONUMENTATION $17,011.50 $0.00 0 $17,011.50 100
$0.00

RETAINING WALLS 07/14/22 50 $164,411.09 $82,205.55 50 $82,205.55 50
$0.00

STREET LIGHTS $142,642.50 $0.00 0 $142,642.50 100
$0.00

WATER MAINS $185,194.10 $0.00 0 $185,194.10 100
$0.00

FENCE $57,200.00 $0.00 0 $57,200.00 100
$0.00

TOTALS $1,931,059.84 $406,493.64 21 $1,524,566.19 79

CONSTRUCTION DEPOSIT

Wildhorse Village, LP



BANK OF WASHINGTON
200 WEST MAIN STREET
WASHINGTON, MO 63090

August 5

744

Wildhorse Village, LP a Missouri limited partnership

1,524,566.19

Wildhorse Village, LP

22



and/or further provided that upon such expiration, or if automatically extended upon 
expiration of the last extension, we shall automatically and immediately transfer the balance of 
the Maximum Available Credit to the City of Chesterfield at the account set forth above 

Sam Unnerstall

August 5 2024

200 West Main Street, Washington, MO 63090





EXHIBIT A 

TO LETTER OF CREDIT 

FORM OF CERTIFICATE FOR "A" DRAWING 

Attention: 
---------

Re: Your Letter of Credit No. 
---------

In Favor of City of Chesterfield, Missouri 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The undersigned, a duly authorized official of City of Chesterfield, Missouri (the 
"Beneficiary"), hereby certifies to ____________ (the "Bank"), with reference to 
Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. ______ (the "Letter of Credit"; any capitalized terms used 
herein and not defined shall have their respective meanings as set forth in the said Letter of Credit) 
issued by the Bank in favor of the Beneficiary, that: 

1. The Account Party has failed to complete all of the required work or fulfill all
obligations required by the City Code, permits, approved plans or agreements.

2. The draft in the sum of $ _______ accompanying this Certificate is not in
excess of the Maximum Available Credit under the Letter of Credit and shall result in
a reduction of the Maximum Available Credit under the Letter of Credit.

Transfer the funds as stated above to the credit of the City of Chesterfield, Missouri to 

[INSERT BANK Account# ______ �, Attention: Director of Finance. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Beneficiary has executed and delivered this certificate this 
_____ day of ______ _, 20 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

By: _____________ _ 
Director of Planning 

Rev 9/23/2020 































Wildhorse Village Lot 6
n/a
701

Wildhorse Village, LP

ORIGINAL DATE OF AMOUNT CURRENT
CATEGORY BALANCE RELEASE RELEASED BALANCE

STREETS $54,876.04 $54,876.04

SIDEWALKS $10,228.58 $10,228.58

STREET SIGNS $162.36 $162.36

SAN. SEWER $26,619.81 $26,619.81

STORM SEWER $25,390.91 $25,390.91

GRADING $8,763.70 $8,763.70

DETENTION $1,633.50 $1,633.50

WATER QUALITY $4,222.90 $4,222.90

EROSION CONTROL $1,568.60 $1,568.60

SILTATION CONTROL $881.10 $881.10

COMMON GR. SEED $2,112.56 $2,112.56

MONUMENTATION $1,701.15 $1,701.15

RETAINING WALL $16,441.11 $16,441.11

STREET LIGHTS $14,264.25 $14,264.25

WATER MAINS $18,519.41 $18,519.41

FENCE $5,720.00 $5,720.00

TOTALS $193,105.98 $0.00 $193,105.98

NOTE: Deposit is adjusted to account for 10% of entire sewer costs, and 0% of LOMR/Elev. Cert's, if any)

MAINTENANCE DEPOSIT

SUBDIVISION:
PLAT:

SUB CODE:
DEVELOPER:


	2022-08-01 Agenda Review
	2022-08-01 City Council Agenda
	2022-07-18 City Council Minutes
	2022-07-25 Special City Council Minutes
	Bill No. 3398 - PZ 07-2021 15201 Conway Rd (Chabad)
	2022 Asphalt Parking Lot Resurfacing and Sealing Projects
	Municipal League Annual Dues
	Attach A
	Attach B
	Bill No. 3399 Conflict of Interest Memo and Bill for Council Agenda
	Bill No. 3400 - Record Plat, WH Village, Lot 6



